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Taylor Manor Hospital (Patapsco Manor Sanatorium, Pinel Clinic) 
4100 College Avenue 
Ellicott City 

Description: 
Taylor Manor Hospital is located at 4100 College Avenue, about three-quarters of a mile 
south of Ellicott City, in northeastern Howard County, Maryland. The hospital complex 
consists of more than a dozen buildings, at least eight of which are historic and are 
scheduled to be demolished. Six of these eight buildings are located in a circle at the 
west end of the complex, with a seventh in the middle of the circle, and the Nurses' 
Residence located at the south end of the whole complex. "A" Cottage is located on the 
south side of the circle, to the east. It is a one-story, eight-bay by three-bay frame 
structure with a rubble stone foundation, wood shingle siding, and a gable roof with 
asphalt shingles and a north-south ridge. "B" Cottage is set just to the west of "A" 
Cottage, on the south side of the circle. It is a one-story, nine-bay by three-bay structure 
with a stone ashlar foundation. The first story walls are stucco and there is a hipped roof 
with slate, and it has flared eaves. This cottage has a "T"-plan with the "T" on the center 
of the south elevation. The north elevation has a center entrance with a one-story, one-
bay porch that has Greek Doric columns. The Adolescent Building is located to the west 
of "B" Cottage, off of the circle, and is located in the hillside that slopes down to the 
west. The building is divided into three sections, with the west section appearing to be 
the oldest. This section is 2 54 stories and has stucco walls and a gable roof with slate and 
an east-west ridge. The center section has stone ashlar beneath stucco, and has a hipped 
roof with slate. The east section is modern. 

"E" Cottage is located at the west end of the circle and has a three-part plan to it, with the 
center section being two stories tall and having a rubble stone first story. There are one-
story wings on the north and south ends. Building 16 is located at the northwest corner of 
the circle. The building has a two-story, two-bay by one-bay section to the south that has 
rubble stone on the first story and German siding on the second story. The second story 
is cantilevered on the south and on the west. It has a gable roof with an east-west ridge 
and asphalt shingles. There is an addition on the north side of the main block that 
projects to the east of the south section. It is two stories and is set lower than the south 
section, because the ground slopes down here. The kitchen is located on the north side of 
the circle, and is banked into the hill, which slopes down to the north. It is a one-story, 
"L"-plan building with a rubble stone foundation on the west half and ashlar stone on the 
east half. The first story is mostly stucco, and there is a hipped roof with slate that has a 
kick at the eaves. There is a "T" on the north side of the building that has painted ashlar 
and some stucco, with additions to the east and west of the "T." 

The pump house is located in the center of the circle of buildings and is a one-story, one-
bay by one-bay structure with a concrete foundation, German siding, and a hipped roof 
with wood shingles. The Nurses' Residence is a one-story structure. The three south 
bays have a rubble stone foundation and rock-faced concrete block walls. The four north 
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bays have a CMU foundation and asbestos shingle siding on frame. The whole building 
has a gable roof with asphalt shingles and a north-south ridge. The Office is located to 
the east of "A" Cottage and is a one-story, "U"-shaped, Prairie-School style structure 
with walls of both rubble ashlar brought to course and stucco, and a hip roof with flat-
roofed extensions off of it. The New Center is located to the east of the office and is a 
Modern circular concrete structure with semicircular arches and a semicircular-arched 
lantern in the center of the flat roof. There are semicircular-arched covered walkways 
that extend from this structure 
Significance: 
Taylor Manor Hospital is built on part of the Thomas and Sophia Gaither farm, which the 
Gaither's acquired in 1873 and sold to the Howard County Sanitarium Company in 1907. 
The Gaither farm was 141 acres, but the sanitarium only purchased 55 acres, along with 
the Gaither house and other outbuildings. Dr. W. Rushmer White, a Canadian, operated 
the hospital inside the Gaither house. In 1922 a new building known as the annex was 
built. On the night of 21 November 1923 the old Gaither house caught fire and the 
building was completely destroyed. Plans were started immediately for a series of new 
buildings. "A" Building was reportedly built in 1924, designed by architect Walter M. 
Gieske, of Catonsville. There are several buildings that contain earlier structures that 
must date to the Gaither farm period, or even earlier, and have substantial additions to 
them. These include "E" and "F" buildings, both of which were originally small stone 
structures. The present-day kitchen building and "B" Building were reportedly built in 
1932. A new admissions building, now known as the Adolescent Building, was 
constructed in 1948 and enlarged in 1952 and 1961. Taylor's son, Irving, became 
medical director in 1949. The name was changed to Taylor Manor Hospital in 1954, and 
the new office building was completed the same year. The New Center building was 
opened in 1968. Dr. Taylor's son, Dr. Bruce Taylor, later took over as the medical 
director. In 2002 the Sheppard Pratt Health System acquired the hospital operation from 
the Taylors. The land and buildings were retained by the Taylors and most of the 
buildings were demolished in late 2008-early 2009 for redevelopment of the land. The 
administration building and the New Center building both remain, but they will probably 
be demolished in five to ten years. 
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1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name) 

historic Taylor Manor Hospital 

other Patapsco Manor Sanatorium, Pinel Clinic 

2. Location 
street and number 4100 College Avenue not for publication 

city, town Ellicott City X_ vicinity 

county Howard 

3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners) 

name Autumn River Corporation 

street and number 4100 College Avenue telephone 

city, town Ellicott City state MD zip code 21043 

4. Location of Legal Description 
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Howard County Courthouse liber 84 folio 588 

city, town Ellicott City tax map 25 tax parcel 73 tax ID number 

5. Primary Location of Additional Data 
Contributing Resource in National Register District 
Contributing Resource in Local Historic District 
Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register 
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register 
Recorded by HABS/HAER 
Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT 
Other: 

6. Classification 

Category Ownership Current Function Resource Count 
district public agriculture landscape Contributing Noncontributing 

X buildinq(s) X private commerce/trade recreation/culture 10 5 buildings 
structure both defense religion 0 0 sites 
site domestic social 0 0 structures 
object education transportation 0 0 objects 

funerary work in progress 10 5 Total 
government unknown 

X health care X vacant/not in use Number of Contributing Resources 
industry other: previously listed in the Inventory 

0 



7. Description Inventory No. HO-975 

Condition 

excellent deteriorated 
X good ruins 

fair altered 

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it 
exists today. 

Summary: 
Taylor Manor Hospital is located at 4100 College Avenue, about three-quarters of a mile south of 
Ellicott City, in northeastern Howard County, Maryland. The hospital complex consists of more than a 
dozen buildings, at least eight of which are historic and are scheduled to be demolished. Six of these 
eight buildings are located in a circle at the west end of the complex, with a seventh in the middle of the 
circle, and the Nurses' Residence located at the south end of the whole complex. "A" Cottage is located 
on the south side of the circle, to the east. It is a one-story, eight-bay by three-bay frame structure with a 
rubble stone foundation, wood shingle siding, and a gable roof with asphalt shingles and a north-south 
ridge. "B" Cottage is set just to the west of "A" Cottage, on the south side of the circle. It is a one-
story, nine-bay by three-bay structure with a stone ashlar foundation. The first story walls are stucco 
and there is a hipped roof with slate, and it has flared eaves. This cottage has a "T"-plan with the "T" on 
the center of the south elevation. The north elevation has a center entrance with a one-story, one-bay 
porch that has Greek Doric columns. The Adolescent Building is located to the west of "B" Cottage, off 
of the circle, and is located in the hillside that slopes down to the west. The building is divided into 
three sections, with the west section appearing to be the oldest. This section is 2 lA stories and has 
stucco walls and a gable roof with slate and an east-west ridge. The center section has stone ashlar 
beneath stucco, and has a hipped roof with slate. The east section is modern. 

"E" Cottage is located at the west end of the circle and has a three-part plan to it, with the center section 
being two stories tall and having a rubble stone first story. There are one-story wings on the north and 
south ends. Building 16 is located at the northwest corner of the circle. The building has a two-story, 
two-bay by one-bay section to the south that has rubble stone on the first story and German siding on the 
second story. The second story is cantilevered on the south and on the west. It has a gable roof with an 
east-west ridge and asphalt shingles. There is an addition on the north side of the main block that 
projects to the east of the south section. It is two stories and is set lower than the south section, because 
the ground slopes down here. The kitchen is located on the north side of the circle, and is banked into 
the hill, which slopes down to the north. It is a one-story, "L"-plan building with a rubble stone 
foundation on the west half and ashlar stone on the east half. The first story is mostly stucco, and there 
is a hipped roof with slate that has a kick at the eaves. There is a "T" on the north side of the building 
that has painted ashlar and some stucco, with additions to the east and west of the "T." 

The pump house is located in the center of the circle of buildings and is a one-story, one-bay by one-bay 
structure with a concrete foundation, German siding, and a hipped roof with wood shingles. The 
Nurses' Residence is a one-story structure. The three south bays have a rubble stone foundation and 
rock-faced concrete block walls. The four north bays have a CMU foundation and asbestos shingle 
siding on frame. The whole building has a gable roof with asphalt shingles and a north-south ridge. The 
Office is located to the east of "A" Cottage and is a one-story, "U"-shaped, Prairie-School style structure 
with walls of both rubble ashlar brought to course and stucco, and a hip roof with flat-roofed extensions 
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off of it. The New Center is located to the east of the office and is a Modern circular concrete structure 
with semicircular arches and a semicircular-arched lantern in the center of the flat roof. There are 
semicircular-arched covered walkways that extend from this structure 

Description: 
Taylor Manor Hospital is located at 4100 College Avenue, about three-quarters of a mile south of 
Ellicott City, in northeastern Howard County, Maryland. The hospital complex consists of more than a 
dozen buildings, at least eight of which are historic and are scheduled to be demolished. Six of these 
eight buildings are located in a circle at the west end of the complex, with a seventh in the middle of the 
circle, and the eighth building located at the south end of the whole complex. 

"A" Cottage 
"A" Cottage is located on the south side of the circle, to the east, on ground that slopes down to the 
south. It is a one-story, eight-bay by three-bay frame structure with a rubble stone foundation that has 
an exposed basement at the south end, wood shingle siding, and a gable roof with asphalt shingles and a 
north-south ridge. The south bay of the building is recessed on both the east and west sides, and has a 
hipped roof on it. The foundation for this south bay is tied into the main block of the cottage. There is 
an addition on the south end of the cottage that has a CMU foundation that is four bays by one bay. The 
first story has wood shingle siding and the two south bays have a gable roof, while the two north bays 
are two stories and have a shed roof. There is an enclosed addition on the north that used to be a 
screened porch. It is one story tall and one bay by five bays, with stucco and a flat roof. The east 
elevation of the main block has seven two-over-two double-hung sash that are wood and have blinds. 
The south addition has two four-light sliding sash in the foundation. The first story has five four-light 
steel casements with a five-light transom above and there is plywood infill both to the north and south of 
the windows. The north addition has a two-over-two sash with blinds, and the sash is also wood. There 
is a small porch on the south side of the east bay, and it has a turned post. The north elevation has a 
recessed center doorway with a wood door that has one light over one panel, and has one sidelight to 
each side of the door. The east bay has a flush door, the east center bay has a wood one-over-one sash 
with blinds, the west center bay also has a wood one-over-one sash with blinds, and the west bay has a 
flush door. The west elevation of the north addition has a wood two-over-two sash with blinds and a 
porch on the south side that has a turned post. The west elevation of the main block has seven two-over-
two sash that match the east elevation. The south addition has a two-light sash in the center of the north 
half of the foundation, and this is set behind wooden stairs. There is a flush metal door and a two-light 
sash in the south half of the foundation. The first story of the south addition has a window that matches 
the east elevation, with a flush wood door to the south of it, and there is a porch with turned posts in 
front of this door. The south elevation of the main block has a two-over-two sash to the east and west of 
the south addition. There is no opening in the foundation of the south addition. The first story of this 


